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To,

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.,
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Floor No.25, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street, Mumbai-400 001,
Telephone: 22721234

Dear Sir,
Sub: - Copy of Annual Report for the year 2023-24.

We wish to inform you that the 58" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company will
be held on Thursday, September 26, 2024 at 11:00 A.M. through Video Conferencing (”"VC”)
/ Other Audio- Visual Means.

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, please find enclosed a copy of Annual Report for the
year ended March 31, 2024.

The Annual Report containing the notice is also uploaded on the company’s website
www.mmfoam.com

Kindly take the same on record
Thanking you

Yours Faithfully,
For M M Rubber Company Limited
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KSHI R 6065 so530
Meenakshi R
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
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NOTICE
Te
The Members,

Notice is hereby given that the 58th Annual General Meeting of the members of M.M. Bubber Company Limited,
will be held on Thursday, 26th September 2024 at 11.00 A.M. through Video Conferences/other Audio visual
means, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
Iterm No.l: Adoption of Accounts:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resclution as an Ordinary
Resclution:

SRESOLVED THAT, the Aundited Balance sheet as at 31st March,2024 the statement of Profit and loss, notes
forming part thereof, the cash flow statement for the year ended 31.03.2024, Financial Statements, together with
the Directors' Report and the Anditors' Report thereon as circulated to the members and presented to the
meeting be and the same are hereby approved and adopted.”

Item No.2: Re-Appointment of Retiring Director:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s}, the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Jacob Mammen (DIN: 00078010) who retires by rotation as per Section 152
and being eligible to offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIALBUSINESS
Item No.3: Appointment of Statutory Anditors:

To appoint Statutory Auditor of the Company and to fix their rernuneration and if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of the section 138(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules 2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force), appointment of M/s. Narayan Bhat And Co., Chartered Accountants (FRIN: 00501185),
Bangalore, who were appointed by the Board of Directors as the Statutory Auditors of the Company w.e.f. 31st
July, 2024 till the coneclusion of this Annual General Meeting of the Company, to fill the casual vacancy caused by
the resignation of M/s. R A M § And Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 0165248) the Statutory auditors of the
Company be and is hereby approved at such rernuneration as may be decided by any Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER pursuant to the provisions of Section 138, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies fAct, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Anditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification, amendment or enactment thereof, for the time being in force), and pursuant to the
recommendation of the Audit Committee of the Board, M/s. Narayan Bhat And Co., Chartered Accountants (FRIN:
0050118) be and are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the Company, for a term of five consecutive
years to hold the office from the conclusion of this 58th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 63rd
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Annual General Meeting of the Company at such remuneration as mentioned in the explanatory statement in
addition to out of pocket expenses as may be incurred by them during the course of audit:

By Order of the Board
Fox M M Rubbex Company Limited
Roy Mammen
Place:Bangalore Managing Director
Date:03-09-2024 (DIN:00077409)

NOTES:

1.

10.

In terms of Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") Circular No. 20/2020 dated SthMay, 2020 read with
Circular 14/2020 dated BthApril, 2020, Circular 17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020, Circular 02/2021 dated
13thJanuary, 2021, Circular 20/2021 dated 08th December, 2021, Circular 03/2022 dated 05thMay, 2022,
Circular 10/2022 dated 28th December 2022 ("MCA Circulars") and Securities Exchange Board of India
(SEEBI) Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDL/CIR/F/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020, and Circular Ne.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDZ/CIR/P/2021/1]1 dated l15thJanuary, 2021, Circular No.:
SEEL'HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated 13th May 2022physical presence of the Members are not
required at commen venue as the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is being conducted through Video
Conference ("VC")/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM"). The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the
Registered Office of the Company.

A member entitled to vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and
proxy need not be a member. In terms of MCA Circulars, since physical attendance of Members has heen
dispensed with, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, facility of appointment of
proxies by Members under Section 105 of the Act, will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy
Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to the Notice.

Facility of joining the AGM through VC / OAVM shall open 30 minutes before the time scheduled for the
AGM and the Members can join the AGM by following the procedure mentioned in this Notice. The facility of
participation at the AGM throughVC/OAVM will be made available on first come first serve basis.

Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum
under Section 103 of the Act.

The Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent for its Share Registry worlk (Physical and Electronic) are
M/e. Cameo Corporate Services Limited, having their office premizes at 'Subramanian Building',No.1, Club
House Road, Chennai- 600002,

Pursuant to Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of
Equity Shares of the Company will remain closed from 20th September 2024 to 26th September 2024both
days inclusive,

Purznant to provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, Members can avail the facility of
nomination in respect of shares held by them in physical form. Members desiring to avail this facility may
send their nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 (Form attached) duly filled into the Company's
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent: M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Limited, 'Subramanian Building’,Ne.1,
Club House Road, Chennai - 800 002.

Memnbers holding shares in electronic form may contact their respective Depository Participant for availing
this facility.

Members are requested to intimate immediately any change of address to their Depositories Participants
(DPs) in respect of their holdings in Demat form and to the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
M/e. Cameo Corporate Services Limited, 'Subramanian Building', No.1, Club House Road, Chennai - 600
002, in respect of their physical share folios, if any.

Members who are desirous of seeking any further information or clarification, if any, particularly with
regard to the accounts are requested to write to the Company at least seven days in advance of the meeting
so that the information can be made availalle at the meeting.




11. As per SEBI directive, it iz mandatory for the transferee to furnish self-attested copy of the PAN (Permanent
Account Number) card to the Company/RTA for registration of transfer/transmission/transposition of
shares in the physical form.

12. Electronic (soft) copy of the Notice of the B8th Annual General Meeting of the Company inter-alia indicating
the process and manner of e-voting along with the Annual Report for 2023-24 iz being sent to all the
Members whose e-mail IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s)/ Registrar Transfer
Agent for communication purposes. As per the General Circular No.18/2020 dated 21 stApril2020, General
Circular No.20/2020 dated May 3, 2020, and Circular No, 02/202]1 dated 13thJanuary 2021 and SEEI
Circulars SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/7% dated 12th May, 2020, and Circular No. SEEI'HO/CFD/
CMD2/CIE/P/2021/11 dated 15th January, 2021, Circular Neo.: SEBIYHO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated
13thMay 2022, Company decided to conduct the meeting throughVideo Conference.

13. As per Regulation 27 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(Listing Regulations) details in respect of the Directors seeking appointment or re-appointment at the
Annual General Meeting, nature of their expertise in specific functional areas, their other directorship and
committee memberships, their shareholding and relationship "with other directors of the Company are
given below:, their shareholding and relationship with other directors of the Company are given below:

Name of the Director Mir. Jacob Mammen (DIN: 00078010)
Date of Birth 15-11-18962

| Age 62 years
Qualification Graduate

List of companies in which directorship | 1. 5Stable Investments and Finance Company Limited

is held as on 31st March, 2024 2. Devon Plantations and Industries Limited

3. Dewvon machines Private Limited

4. Devon Financial Services Limited

§. Indian Coffee and Tea Distributing Company Limited
6. Indo Roses and Floriculture Limited

7. Mammen Mappillai and Investments Private Limited
8. Badra Estates and Industries Limited

8. M.M.Housing Private Limited

10. The Malayala Manorama Company Limited

Shareholding as on 31st March 2024

a) Held individually 24,328
b) Held jointly with others il
/¢ BY ORDER OFTHEBOARD //
For MM RUBBER COMPANY LIMITED
Roy Mamimen
Place: Bangalore Managing Director
Date: 03-09-5024 (DIN:00077408)
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Explanatory statement
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

ItemNo. 3

M/s. R AM S And Co, Chartered Accountants, were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the
§6th Annual General Meeting held on 28th September, 2023, The auditors have tendered resignation from the
office of statutory auditors on 02nd July 2024 due to change in the landscape of the Company on being listed and
need for the company to have auditors with resocurces across geographies. To fill the casual vacancy caused by
resignation of the statutory auditor, the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 31st July, 2024,
based on the recormmmendations of the Audit Committee, have approved the appointment of M/s. Narayan Bhat &
Co, Chartered Accountants, Bengaluru (Firm Registration No.: 00850118), in terms of Section 1389 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) (the “Act”) read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) to hold the coffice upto this Annunal General Meeting, subject to the approval of the members.
Considering wide experience and expertise of M/s. Narayan Bhat & Co, Chartered Accountants, Bengaluru
their appointment is proposed by the Board.

The approval of members for the said appointment is proposed in this meeting. M/s. Narayan Bhat & Co have
consented to the proposed appointment and have confirmed their eligibility for the same. They have further
confirmed that their appointment, if made, would be within the limits laid down by or under the anthority of the
Aect. They have also confirmed that they are not disqualified for the proposed appointment under the Act,
including under Section 141 of the Act, the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and the riles and regqulations made
thereunder.

The details required to be disclosed under Regulation 36(5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) are as under:

K. Proposed fees payable to the Statutory Auditor(s): T3 Lakhs p.a. (plus taxes) which includes annual
certification charges but excludes out-of-pocket expenses & tax audit fees. Fees will be generally billed in a
manner consistent with the progress of audit/engagements.

B. Terms of appointment: Appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Company will be from the conclusion of
the B8th Annual General Meating till the conclusion of the 63rd Annual General Meeting of the Company.

C. Incase ofa new auditor, any material change in the fee payable to such auditor from that paid to the
outgoing anditor along with the rationale for such change: Mot applicable as such rationale is not provided
herein.

D. Basis of recommendation for appointment: The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee, at their
respective meetings held on 31st July 2024, have considered various parameters like capability to serve a
widespread business landscape as that of the Company, audit experience across the industries, market
standing of the fitm, clientele served, technical knowledge, governance standards, ete., and found M/s. Narayan
Bhat & Co suitable for this appointinent and accordingly, recommended the same.

E. Credibility: M/s, Narayan Bhat and Co., Chartered Accountants function with a aim to understand the exact
need of the client and help them to accomplish it with technical, analytical and professional expertise. They
combine hard work and technology for maximum efficiency. They resolve client's needs by structuring their
dynamic and experienced team of personnels.

The Board, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, recommends the resolution as set outin item
ne. 3 of this notice to be passed as an ordinary resolution. None of the directors and key managerial persennel or
their relatives ave interested financially or otherwise in the resolution as set outinitem no. 3 of this notice.




E-VOTING FACILITY:

As per Section 108 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Companies (Management and Administration) Rules
2014, e-voting facility is provided in respect of voting for the resolutions to be passed in the Annual General
Meeting.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMEERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING ARE A5 UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on 23rd September 2024 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on 25th September 2024 at
05:00 E.M., The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose
names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 18th
September 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to
their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 19th September
2024.

How doIvote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps™ which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in
Demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode are allowed to vote through their Demat account maintained
with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and
ermailId in their Demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Loginmethod for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of ml
shareholders| Login Method

Indiridual l. Existing [DeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDLViz. hitps://eservices.nsdl.com either on

Shareholders a Personal Computer or oh a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner"
holding icon under “Login” which is available under 'TDeAS section , this will prompt you to enter your
securities in existing User ID and Password. After successiul authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting
demat mode services under Value added services. Click on" Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you
with NSDL will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e.NSDLand

you will be re-directad to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the rerote a-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2, If vyou are not registered for IDefS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
httpe://aservices.nedl. corn/SecureWeab./IdeasDivrectRedq.jsp

3. Wisit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
hitps:/ e evoting.nsdl.con’ either on a Personal Coraputer or on a mobile, Once the home pags
of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which is awailable under
'‘Shareholder/Member' section. & new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your
sixteen digit Demat agcount number hold with NEDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as
shomm on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e, NSDL
and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virmal meating & voting during the meeting.

4, Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “WNSDL Speede” facility by scanning
the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mohile App |s ovailoble on

& AppStore B Google Play
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Individual 1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and
Shareholders password, Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further anthentication.

holding The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on
securities in loginicon & New Syatem Myeazi Tab and then enter your existing my easi username & password.

Demat mode | 2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the =-Voting option for eligible
with CDSL companies where the e-voting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking

the e-voting option, the user will be akle to zee e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meating. Additionally, there is also linlks provided to access the system of all e-Voling Service
Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers' website directly.

3. If the user iz not registered for Easi‘Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website
wirarn cdslindia. com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and
PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate
the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After
snccessinl authentication, user will be able to sea the e-Voting option where the e-voting is in prograss
and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

el You can alzo login using the login credentials of your Demat account through your Depository Participant
Sharsholders | v, jctered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option.
(holding | Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
securities in | authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service
Demat mode) | provider i.e. NEDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the
login through | remote a-Voting pariod or joining virtual meesting & voting during the meeting.

their
depository
participants

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and
Forget Password option available at above mentioned website,

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related
to login through Depositoryi.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding securities in | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
Demat mode with NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoling@@nsdl.com or call at 022
- 4888 TOOO

Individnal Sharsholders holding securities in | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
Demat mode with CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk. evoting@cdslindia. com
or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

BE. Login Method for e-Voting and joining wirtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Wisit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https:/Swarwv.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login® which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member'section.

3.  Anew screen will open.You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTF and aVerification Code as
shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for N8DL eservices i.e, IDEAS, you can log-in at hitps://eservices.nsdl.com/
with your existing IDEAS login. Once youlog-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, clickon e-
Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.




4. YourUserID details are given below
Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL  Your User ID is:
or CDSL) or Physical
a) For Members who hold shares in Demat 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
ROBORAL WG NSDL: For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is
1 Bk th.EI‘I. VOUL user m i3 maﬂﬂ***lz******.
16 Digit Beneficiary ID
k) For Meml:fars who held shares in Demat For example if your Beneficiary ID is
account with CDSL. 12#*#kdekkkkdd*® fhen your user ID is
1 BEkhRR R ARG R EEEE
EVEN Number followed by Folic Number reqgistered
c) For Members holding shares in Physical with the company
Form. For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is
101456 then user ID is 10145&001%**
5.  Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a) I you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast
VOUr vote.

b) Ifyouare using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 'initial password’
which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password', you need to enter the
'initial password' and the system will force you to change your password.

¢) How to retrieve your 'initial password'?

(i) Ifyour email ID is registered in your Demat account or with the company, your 'initial
password' is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL
from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file.
The password to open the pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of
client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file
contains your User ID' and your "initial password'.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those
shareholders whose email ids are not registerad.

8. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your
password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?" (If you are holding shares in your Demat account with
NEDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

k) Physical User Reset Password?

" (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on wwrevoting nsdl.com.

c) 1f you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@insdl.com mentioning your Demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name
and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-
Voting system of NEDL.

1.  After entering your password, tick on Agree to "Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check bozx.
8.  Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.
9.  After you click on the "Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.
How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?
1.

2.

After successiul login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies "EVEN" in which you are
holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

Select "EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting peried and
casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on
"WC/OAVM" link placed under “Join Meeting”.

WNowr you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on *Submit” and also "Confirm" when prompted.
Upon confirmation, the message ‘"Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

7
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General Guidelines for shareholders:

1.  Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI ete.) are required to send scanned copy
(PDE/TPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter ete. with attested specimen
signature of the duly anthorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail
to ce.sharvarikulkarnil8@gmail.comwith a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com., Institutional
shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NEI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power
of Attorney / Authority Letter ete. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter”
displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take ntmost care to
keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful
attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need te go through the “Forgot User
Details/Password?" or “Physical User Reset Password? option available on wwrw.evoting.nsdl.com to
reset the password.

3.  In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-
voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of wiww.evoting.nsdl.com or
call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to (Wame of NSDL Official) at evoting@nsdl.com

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring
user id and password and registration of & mail ids for e-voting for the resclutions set out in this
notice;

1. Incase shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio We., Wame of shareholder, scanned copy of
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), ARDHAR (seli-
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to (Company email idj.

2. In case shares are held in Demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit
beneficiary IDY), Name, client ruaster or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (zelf-attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADIHAR (sell-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to (Company email id).
If you ave an Individnal shareholder holding securities in Demat mode, you are recuested to refer to the
login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode,

3.  Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting(@nsdl.com for procuring user id and
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4., Interms of SEBI circular dated December 3, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode are allowed to wote through their Demat
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update
their mobile number and ernail ID correctly in their Demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote
e-voting.

2.  Only those Members/ shareholders, wheo will be present in the AGM through VC/QAVM facility and have
not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing
so,shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

3.  Memberswho have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will
not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the personwho may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting
on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE A5 UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting
system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting
system. After successful login, you can see link of "VC./OAVM" placed under "Join meeting” menu against
company name.You are requested to click onVC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for
VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be
displayed. Please note that the membesrs who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have
forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Purther Membetrs will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

4. Flease note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting
via Mebile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video lozs due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

§. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance
mentioning their name Demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email
id).The same will be replied by the company suitably.

6. Registration of Speaker related point needs to be added by company.
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To

(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014]

The Board of Divectors,

I

FORM No. SH-13
Nomination Form
[Pursuant to section 12 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(1) of the Companies

respect of such securities in the event of mny/our death.

(1} PARTICULARS OF THE SECURITIES (in respect of which nomination is being made)

the holder(s) of the securities particulars of which are given hersunder wish to
malke nomination and do hereby nominate the following persons in whom shall vest, all the rights in

Nature of Securities Folio No.

No.of Securities

Certificate No.

Distinctive No.

FROM

TO

(2) PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE/S

()

Name

o)

Date of Birth

ic)

Father's/Mother's/Spouse's Name

(d)

Occupation

(e)

Nationality

®

LAddress

(@

E-mailid

(h)

Relationship with the security holder

(3) INCASEOFNOMINEEIS AMINOR-
(a) Date of Birth
(k) Date of attaining majority
(¢} Name of Guardian
(d) Address of Guardian

Name of the Security Holder

Signature

Witness

Name

Address
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M M RUBBER COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: L25180KA1264PLCO52092
Regd. Office : "Empire Infantry”, 3rd Floor, No.28, Infantry Road, Bangalore-560 001
E-mail ID:mmfoam2T@gmail.com | Phone No.: 080 22866268 | Websiterrmww.mmfoam.com

BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Members,
Your directors have pleasure in presenting before you the 58th finnual Report of the Company together with the
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 3 1st March 2024.

1. COMPANY ACTIVITY & PERFORMANCE:
The principal activity of the company continues to be manufacture and marketing of foam and other related
products.
2. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY:
Financial year ended| Financial year ended
Particulars Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
7 in lakhs 7 in lakhs
Revernme from Operations 4163.96 4145.52
Other Income 5.81 3.35
Profit before Exceptional Items and Tax (130.25) 311.80
Exceptional ltems (Expenses)/Income - -
Profit before tax (130.28) 311.80
Liess: Taxation
Current tax - 42.00
Taxes of Prior years 11.23 8.90
Deferred Tax(credit)/Debit 23.79 3.88
Profit/loss for the year (165.31) 2BE6.02
Total other comprehensive income (net of tax) - -
Total Comprehensive income for the year {165.21) 266,02

3.

OPERATIONS & PERFORMANCE:

Your directors wish to inform you that during the year, the market was grim and the situation was not
encouraging as a lot of unorganized latex mattress manufacturers and global players have come into the
market. Despite the challenging situation, the company was able to achieve a turnover of Rs. 41.64 crores.
The company ended up with a loss of Bs. 166.31 lakhs. Hitherto the company was valuing the closing stock
of inventory pertaining to finished products comprising of different individual products on the basis of net
billing price of such product which was not in accordance with Indian accounting standard No. 2. During the
financial year 2023-24 the company has changed the method of valuation of closing stock which is in
accordance with Indian accounting standard No.2 and because of this change there has been reduction in
value of closing stock of inventory . This is the major reason because of which there is Loss for the current
financial year 2023-24

The Company is pursuing its online marketing vigorously to increase the turnover.

PROSPECTS:

The Company's entive production is centralized at its own premises at Ranipet. As informed earlier, the
company is in the process of automatization of its production facilities on a staged manner. During the year
the company has invested an amount of Rs. 3 Crores on Machinery. Your divectors arve confident that with this
move, the Company's production, turnover, and the profitability would improve considerably in the coming
years.

DIVIDEND:
Company has not declared dividend this year.
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6.

II

lnl

11.

12.

RESERVE:
The Company has not proposed to transfer any amount to the general reserve.

DETAILSIN RESPECT OF FRAUD:
During the year under review, the Statutory Auditor in their report have not reported any instances of frands
committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013,

STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE OF APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:
The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issned by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India as applicable onmeetings of the Board of Directors and General meetings.

CAPITALSTRUCTURE:
a. BUYBACKOF SECURITIES:
The Company has not bought baclk any of itz securities during the year under review.

b, SWEATEQUITTY:
The Company has notissued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

c. BONUSSHARES:
Ne Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review,
d. RIGHTSISSUE:
The Company has not issued any Rights issue during the year under review.
e. EMPLOYEESSTOCE OPTIONPLAN:
The Comparny has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees.
f. SHARESWITHDIFFERENTIALRIGHTS:
Company has notissued any shares with Differential Rights for the year under review.

g. ISSUE AND ALLOTMENT OF EOQUITY SHARES ON THE BASIS OF PREFERENTIAL
ALLOTMENT:

Company has notissued equity shares on preferential basis.

LISTINGWITH STOCKEXCHANGES:

The Company confirms that it has paid the Annnal Listing Fees for the year 2023-24 to BSE Limited where the
Company's Shares are listed

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES:

Your Company's 66.83% of the company's paid up Equity Share Capital is in dematerialized form as on
dlstMarch 2024 and balance 33.37% is in physical form. The Company's Registrars and Transfer Agent is
M/s. CAMEQ CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED having their registered office at "Subramanian Building”
Ne.l,Club House Road, Chennai— 800002,

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Az onMarch 31, 2024, your Board comprises of 4 Directors including 2 Independent Directors.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the
Company Mr. Jacoh Mammen (DIN: 00078010}, Non-executive Director retires by rotation at fortheoming
Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. The brief resumne and other
details as required under the Listing Regulations are provided in the Notice of the 58th Annual General
Meeting of the Compary.

Ms. Keerthi § Raj — Company Secretary and Compliance Officer has resigned the office w.e.f. 12th April
2024 and Ms. Meenakshi R has been appointed as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer with
effect from 29th May 2024.

In terms of Section 203 of the said Act, the following were designated as Key Managerial Personnel of your
company by the Board:

*  Mr. RoyMammen — Managing Director

12



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

*  Mr.MMEushalappa - ChiefFinancial Officer
*  Msz.MeenakshiR — Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/ UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE
ACCOUNT

(a) aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at the
beginning of the year -1 shareholder with 100 shares

(b) number of shareholders who approached listed entity for transfer of shares fron suspense account
during the year - Wil

() number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from suspense account during the year —IVil

(d) aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at the
end of the year -1 shareholderwith 100 shares

(e} that the voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares claims
the shares-Yes

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming
that they meet the criteria ofindependence as prescribed under Section 149 of the Act, and the SEBI LODE.
In the opinion of the Board, the independent directors possessnecessary expertise and experience and
also they were independent towards any decision of the management.

BOARD & PERFORMANCE EVALUATION:

During the year, the Board has carried out the annual evaluation of its own performance, the performance of
the Directors individually aswell as the evaluation of Committees of Board.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors reviews the composition of the Board to ensure
an appropriate mix of abilities, experience, and diversity to serve the interests of all shareholders of the

Company.

MNomination and Remuneration Policy was approved by the Board at its meeting held on 30.05.2018. In
terms of Section 178 of the Act, 2013. The objective of such policy shall be te atiract, retain and motivate
executive management and remuneration structured to link to Company's Strategic long-term goals,
appropriateness, relevance, and risk appetite of the company.

The Process of appointing a director/Eey Managerial Personal is that when there is a need or a vacancy
arises, or is expected, the NRC will identify, ascertain the integrity, qualification, appropriate expertise and
experience, having regard to the skills that the candidate will bring to the board in addition to what the
existing members hold.

NUMEBER OF BEOARD MEETINGS HELD:

The Board of Directors duly met six times during the financial year from 01st April 2023 to 31st March 2024
The dates on which the meetings were held are as follows:

Date of Meeting No. of Directors as on the date | No. of Directors Present
24-05-2023 4 3
22-06-2023 1 4
04-08-2023 4 4
08-11-2023 4 4
14-12-2023 4 4
08-02-2024 4 4
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16.

NUMBEROF EUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS HELD:
The Committese consisting of three Directors namely Mr. Ashok Euriyan, Independent Director, Mr. Jacob
Mammen, Director and Mrs. Susan Kurian, Independent Director:

Date of Committee Meeting No. of Members as on date | No. of Members Present
24-05-2023 3 3
04-08-2023 3 3
08-11-2023 3 3
08-02-2024 3 3

18. STAEEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMNITTEE:

The Comumittee consisting of three Directors namely Mr. Roy Mammen, Managing Director, Mrx. Jacob
Mammen, Director and Mrs. Susan Eurian, Independent Director. During the fiseal 2024,21 meetings were
held oml2.04.2023, 24.04.2023, 12.05.2023, 01.06.2023, 12.06.2023, 21.06.2023, 28.06.2023, 31.07.2023,
04.09.2023,22.09.2023,30.10.2023,06.11.2023,15.11.2023,01.12.2023, 29.12.2023, 18.01.2024, 30.01.2024,
12.02.2024,28.02.2024,15.03.2024 and 26.03.2024,

19. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

20.

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors of your Company hereby state and confirm

that:

a) Inthe preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 315t March 2024, the applicable accounting
standards have been follovred and there is no material departures.

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the company for the same period;

¢) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safequarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregqularities.

d) theyhave prepared the annnal accounts on a going concern basis.

&) They have laid down internal financial controls that are adequate and were operating effectively.

f) They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
these are adequate and are operating effectively.

Based on the Internal Financial Controls and Compliance Systems established and maintained by the
company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and reviews performed by the
managerment, the Board is of the opinion that the company's internal financial controls were adecquate and
effective during the financial year 2023-24,

AUDITORS & REPORTS

i. StatutoryBuditors:
M/s.R AM S and Company, (Firm Registration No.0185845), Chartered Accountants, were appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five consecutive years at the Annual General Meeting
held on 28th September 2022, However, the Statutory Auditors have submitted their resignation on
02.07.2024 due to internal reasons and shall not be able to continue as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company.
Further, M/s. Warayan Bhat And Co., Chartered Accountants (FRI: 00501185) shall be appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company in the ensuing AGM for a term of 5 years from conclusion of 58th
Anmmal General meeting till conelusion of 63rd Annunal General Meeting.
The notes on finanecial statement referred to in the Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and do not eall
for any further commentz.

ii. CostBAuditors:
In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has maintained cost records for the
year ended March 31,2024,
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iii. Secretarial Auditor:

M/s. Akshay G and Associates, Bengaluru was appointed as Secretarial Anditor for carrying out the
secretarial andit for the financial year 2023-24.As regquired under Section 204 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Bules, 2014, the Secretarial Andit Report submitted by Company Secretary in Practice is enclosed as a
part of this report Annezxure-A

The Secretarial Anditors in their report have qualified the following points:

iw

1.

3-

“The Secretarial Standards (55-1) requires that notice in writing of every Meeting shall be given
to every Director by hand or by speed post or by registered post or by facsimile or by e-mail or by
any other electronic means. However, we observe that the company has not served notices for
condiucting of Board meetings, Andif Commitfee meeting, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stalkeholder Relationship Commitfee.”

TYour directors wish to clarify asunder:-
The company shall serve separate notices for conducting board meetings and cormittes meeting
by e-mail for the upcoming meetings.

“The Secrefarial Standards (§5-1) provides that in case of Directors participating through
Electronic Mode, the Chairman shall confirm the attendance of such Directors. For this
purpose, at the commencement of the Meeting, the Chairman shall take a roll call. The
Chairman or Company Secrefary shall request the Director participating through Electronic
Mode to state his full name and location from where he is participating and shall record the
same in the Minutes. The proceedings of such Meefings shall be recorded through any
electronic recording mechanism and the details of the venue, date and time shall be mentioned.
However, the Company has not recorded taking of the roll call of the directors participating
through electronic mode in the minutes of the Board meetfings conducted through video
conferencing and also the Company has not maintained the recording of the Boards meetings
conduneted through video conferencing ™

Your directors wish to clarify as under:-
The Board shall record the same in the future meetings held through video conferencing and also
maintain the recordings of the meeting.

Regulation 3{4) of SEEI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015 requires the Board of
Directors shall require the parties to execute agreements to contract confidentiality and non-
disclosure agreements and such parties shall keep information so received confidential and
shall not trade in securities of company when in possession of UPSI. However, non-disclosure
agreements to be entered into by the Company with the individuals who possess UPSI, are notin
place and have not been executed as specified under the regulation.

Your directorswish to clarify as under:-

The company shall make sure to enter non-disclosure agreement between any individual who
possess Undisclosed Price Sensitive information (UPSI) of the Company as specified under the
regulation 3(4) of SEBI (PIT) regulation 2015.

Further, the Company has terminated the services of Alishay G and Associates, Bengaluru as the
Secretarial Anditor w.e.f 3lst May 2024, New Secretarial Auditor Ms. Sharvari Sham Eulkarni,
Practicing Company Secretary has been appointed to carry out the secretarial audit for the
financial year 2024-25 w.e.f0l st June 2024.

Internal Auditor:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Act and the Rules thereunder, your Board had appointed
M/s. 5.B. Mandre and Co., Chartered Accountants, Bangalore as Internal Auditors of the Company for
the FY 2023-24.
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21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

21.

INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARY/ JV/ ASSOCIATE COMPANTY:
Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture, or Associate Company during the peried under
review.

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTWITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the year, the company has not entered any contract / arrangement / transaction with related parties
which could be considered material in accordance with the policy of the company on materiality of related
party transactions. Refer Note No.32 to the financial statement which sets out related party disclosures.

PERTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES ORINVESTMENTS:
Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS

AND OUTGO:

1. Specificareasin which R&D carried outby the Company:
The Compary has an ongoing programine onlatex technology development and its related application
to various products. Accordingly, the Company has in the past launched new products such as Memory
mattress, Memorise and Ortho Bondmattress, contour pillow, haesmorrhoid cushions, neck care and
coccyx cushions.

2. Technology Absorption, Adaptation, and Innovation:
The latest technology is being adopted in the factory for improving productivity and product quality
and reducing consumption of raw materials and fuel. In this connection, pre-vuleanized latex is being
adopted.

3. FYoreign Exchange Earningand Outgo:
Statutory particulars cost with regards to foreign ezchange and outgo appear in the notes pertaining to
the accounts.

4. Disclosure under the Sexunal Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) act, 2013:
The Company has in place a Gender-Neutral Policy on Zexo Tolerance towards Sexual Harassment at
Workplace in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace
(Prevention, Prohikition & Redressal) Act, 2013.

5. Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section
148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is required by the Company as turnover of the Company Ezceeds 35
Crores and accordingly Company is maintaining cost records,

DEPOSITS:

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Sections 73
and T4 of the Act, read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereoffor the time being in force.

DEVELOPMENT END IMPLEMENTATION OF ARISKE MANAGEMENT POLICY:
The Company's Development and Implementation of Rislt Management Policy is provided elsewhere in this
Annual Reportin Management Diseussion and Analysis as Annexure-C,

THE MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED EETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO
WHICHTHESE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS RELATE AND THEDATE OF THE REPORT:

Neo material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company cccurred from the
end of the financial year 2023-24 till the date of this report, Further there was ne change in the nature of the
business of the company.
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28. ANNUAL RETURN:
In accordance with Section 92(3) read writh 134 (3) of the Companies fct, 2013, the Annual Return as of
March 31,2024 is made available on the website of the Company at www.mmfoam.com.

29. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:
No Employee of the Company draws a salary exceeding Rupees One Crore and Two Lakh per annum or Rs.
8,580,000 (Rupees Eight Lakhs and Fifty thousand) per month during the financial year,
The details of ratic of the remuneration of each whole-time Director and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) to
the median of employees’ remuneration as per the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies fAct, 2013,
read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
iz as in Annexure B to this Report.
30. POLICY ON VIGILMECHANISM:
The Aundit committee has adopted a policy on vigil Mechanism in accordance with the provisions of the Act,
2013 and Regulation 22 of SEEI (LODE) Regulations, which provides a formal mechanism for all Directors,
employees and other stakeholders of the company to report to the management, their genuine concerns or
grievances about unethical behaviours, actual or suspected fraud and any violation of the Company's Code
of Conduct or ethics policy.
The policy also provides a direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee to make protective
disclosures to the Management about grievances or violation of the Company's code of conduct.
The policy disclosed on the Company's website in the following link www.mmfoam. com

31. ORDER OF COURT:
No material orders had been passed by the requlators or courts or Tribunals.

32. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:
The provisions for corporate social responsibility (“CSR") under the Companies Act, 2013, are not
applicable to the company for the current financial year.

33. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL:
*  The Internal Financial Contrel with reference to financial statements were operating effectively.

34. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:
Directors take this opportunity to express their thanks to various departments of the Central and State
Government, Bankers, Material Suppliers, Customers and Shareholders for their continued support and
guidance.
The Directorswish to place onrecord their appreciation for the dedicated efforts putin by the Employees of
the Company at all levels.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ASHOEEURIYTAN ROTMAMMEN
Flace:Bangalore DIRECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR
Date:08-08-2024 (DIN:00081374) (DIN:000T7409)
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ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24
ANNEXURE - A

FORM NO.MR -3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year ended 31st March 2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of managerial personnel) Rules, 2014]

II'ﬂ!

The Members,

MMERUBBER COMPANTY LIMITED,

Empire Infantry, 3rd Floor, No.28, Infantry Road, Bengaluru—360001,Earnataka, India.

We hawve conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by M M Rubber Company Limited, (CIN L25190KA1864FLC0G2052)
(hereinafter called “the Company™). Secretarial Audit was conducted for the financial year ended on 31stMarch
2024 in a manner that provided us reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct / statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company'’s books, papers, minute bools, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Cormpany, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, whereby report that in our opinion, the
company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 ("Audit Period”)
complied with the statutory provisions listed here under and alse that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
herein after;

We have examined the books, papers, minute bools, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company for the financial year ended 31stMarch 2024 according to the provisions of:

(i) TheCompanies Act,2013 ("“the Act") and the Rules made there under to the extent applicable.
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1356 and the Rules made there under.
(iif) The Depositories Act, 1936 and the Regulations and Bye- Laws framed there under.

(ivl The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1a82:

a) The Securitiss and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011 - Not applicable for the period under review,

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Regquirements
Regulations, 2018 - Not applicable for the period under review.

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 -
Not applicable for the period under review.

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 -
Not applicable for the period under review.

fy  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1883
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g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2008 - Not
applicable for the period under review.

h) The Securities and Ezxchange Board of India (Buy -Back of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - Not
applicable for the period under review.

iy  The Becurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

We have relied on the representation made by the company & its Officers for systems & mechanism formed Iy
the company for compliance under above-mentioned Other Laws specifically applicable to the company. We
are of the opinion that the management has complied with the above-mentioned Lavrs.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) The clauses of the Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Borbay Stock Exchange Limited
under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(ii) Thesecretarial standards 1 & 2 izsued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
On the basis of the information and explanation provided, the company had no transaction during the period

under Audit requiring the compliance of applicable provisions of the Act / Regulation / Directions as mentioned
above in respect of:

&) Izsue of securities

b) Izsue of dividends

) Buy-back of securities
d) Foreign Direct Investinent
e) Overseas Investment

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Eegulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc, subject to:

1. The Secretarial Standards (55-1) requires that notice in writing of every Meetingshall be given to every
Director by hand or by speed post or by registered post or by facsimile or by e-mail or by any other
electronic means. However, we observe that the company has not served notices for conducting of Board
meetings, Audit Committee meeting, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholder
Relationship Committee,

2. The Secretarial Standards (85-1) provides that in case of Directors participating through Electronic Mode,
the Chairman shall confirm the attendance of such Directors. For this purpose, at the commencement of the
Meeting, the Chairman shall talee a roll call. The Chairman or Company Secretary shall request the
Director participating through Electronic Mode to state his full name and location from where he is
participating and shall record the same in the Minutes. The proceedings of such Meetings shall be
recorded through any electronic recording mechanism and the details of the venue, date and time shall be
mentioned. However, the Company has not recorded taking of the roll call of the directors participating
through electronic mode in the minutes of the Board meetings conduncted throngh video conferencing and
also the Company has not maintained the recording of the Boards meetings conducted through video
conferencing.

3. Regulation 3(4) of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015 requires the Board of Directors
shall require the parties to execute agreements to contract confidentiality and non-disclosure agreements
and such parties shall keep information so received confidential and shall not trade in securities of
company when in possession of UPSL However, non-disclosure agreements to be entered into by the
Company with the individuals whe possess UPS], are not in place and have not been executed as specified
under the regulation.
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We further report thatThe Board of Directors and committees thereof of the Company iz duly constituted with
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors and committees that took place during the period under reviesw were
carried outin compliance with the provisions of the Act subject to the cbservations in this report.

Majority decision is carried through and recorded as part of the minutes. We did not find any dissenting
directors' views in the minutes,

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, requlations and

guidelines.

We further report that during the period covered under the Audit, the cormpany does not have any specific
actions having a major bearing on the company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,

requlations and guidelines.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of
this report.

Sd/-
G Akshay& Associates
Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No.F10867
Place:Bangalore C.P.No.15584
Date: 08.08.2024 PRNo:1607/2021
UDIN :FO1086TFO00T7 44458

20



AENNEXURE-A

To,

The Members,
MMRUBBER COMPANTY LIMITED,
Empire Infantry, 3rd Floor, No.29, Infantry Road, Bengaluru— 560001, Earnataka, India.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility isto express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our andit.

Oy Audit report iz limited to the verification and reporting of the statutory compliances onlaw / requlation
{ guidelines listed in our report and the same pertains to the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024, Our
report does not include those statutory compliances the filing whose dates are extended by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs/ Securities Exchange Board of India/ Reserve Bank of India as the case may be, from time
to time and accordingly such extended time limits remain beyond the date of our audit report.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices,
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have notverified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
company and relied upon the Reports given by statutory auditors or other designated professionals.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and requlations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Cur examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test
basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

G Akshayé& Associates

Place: Bengaluru Practicing Company Secretary
Date: 08.08,2024 Membership No. F10867

C.P.No. 15584
PR No : 1607/2021
UDIN : FOL086TF000T44458
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ANNEXURE-B
FORM NO. ROC-2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(8) of the
Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

1. Details of contracts or arrangements ortransactions not atarm's length basis:
MM Eubber Company Limited has not entered inte any contract/arrangement/transaction with its related
parties whichis not in ordinary course of business or at arm'slength during FY 2023-24.

(a) Name(s) ofthe related party and nature of relationship - Not applicalble.

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions - Not applicable.

(¢) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions - Not applicable.

(d) Salientterms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any- Not applicable.
(&) Justificationfor entering into such contracts or arrangerents or transactions - Not applicable.

(fy date(s)ofapproval by the Board - Not applicable.

(g) Amountpaid as advances, if any - Not applicable.

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188 - Not applicable.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:
(a) Name(s) ofthe related party and nature of relationship - Wot applicable.
(b} Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions - Not applicable.
(¢} Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions - Not applicable.
(d) Salientterms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any- Not applicable.
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any - Not applicable.
(f) Amountpaid asadvances,if any - Not applicable.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ESHOK KURTYAN ROY MAMMEN
DIRECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR
(DIN:00081374) (DIN:00077408)

Place:Bangalore
Date:08-08-2024
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ANNEXURE - C

Information relating to remuneration of Directors / Key Managerial Personnel as required under Section
197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Bules, 2014.

1. Ratioof remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the

Financial Year
Name Designation Ratio to the Median
Mr.Roy Mammen Managing Director 20.78

2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary,in the Financial Year:

Wr. Roy Mammen - Managing Director:8.37%
M. Machimada Muddappa Kushalappa - Chief Financial Officer:T7.66%
Ms.Keerthi 8 Raj - Company Secretary: (3.50%)

3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Finaneial Year: 4% to 5%

4. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as of March 31,2024: 75

8. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last Financial Year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase
inthe managerial remuneration:

Increase in non-managerial salaries were in line with industry practice and market conditions.

6. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company - The Company affirms
that the rermuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ASHOK KURIYAN ROY MAMMEN
DIRECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR
(DIN:00081374) (DIN:000774089)

Place:Bangalore
Date:08-08-2024
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ANNEXURE - D
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS REPORT

a) Internal Control Systems andtheir Adequacy:
Management has putin place effective Internal Control Systems to provide reasonable agsurance for:
+ Safeguarding Assets and theirusage.
* Maintenance of Proper Accounting Records and
* Adecuacy and Reliability of the Information nsed for carrying on Business Operations.

b) Keyelements ofthe Internal Control Systems are as follows:
i. Existence of Authority Manuals and periodical updating of the same for all Punctions.
ii. Existence of clearly defined organizational structure and Authority.
iii. Existence of corporate policies for Financial Reporting and Accounting.
iv. Existence of Management information system npdated from time to time as may be required.
v. Existence of Annual Budgets and Long-Term Business Plans.
vi. Existence ofInternal AuditSystem.

vil. Periodical review of opportunities and risk factors depending on the Global / Domestic Scenario and

toundertalke measures as may be necessary.

The Company has appointed an Independent Aunditor to ensure compliance and effectiveness of the

Internal Control Systems inplace.

The Audit Committee is regularly reviewing the Internal Audit Reports for the auditing carried ont in all
the key areas of the operations additionally, the Audit Committee approves all the audit plans and reports
for significant issues raised by the Internal and External Auditors. Reqular reports on the business
developroent, future plans and projections are given to the Board of Directors. Internal Audit Reports are

regularly circulated for perusal of Senior Management for appropriate action as required.

Normal foreseeable risks of the Company's assets are adequately covered by comprehensive insurance.

Ri=sk assessments, inspections and safety andits are carried out periodically.

¢) Financial and Operational Performance:
The details are already furnished under* Activity and Performance".

d) HumanResourcesDevelopmentand Industrial Relations:

The Company for its employees offering various incentives and other welfare schemes to motivate the

employees. The Company's relationship with its work force is cordial.

e) CauntionaryStatement:

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis and Directors Report describing the Company's
strengths, strategies, projections and estimates, are forward-looking statements and Progressive within
the meaning of applicable lavws and regulations. Actual results may vary from those expressed or implied,
depending upon economic conditions, Government Policies and other incidental factors. Readers are

cauntioned not to place undue reliance on the forward- looking statemnents.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ASHOK KURIYAN ROY MAMMEN
DIRECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR
(DIN:00081374) (DIN:000774089)

Place:Bangalore
Date:08-08-2024
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RAMS AND CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS,
BANGALOEE
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To The Members of M M Rubber Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M M Rubber Company Limited, (The Company)
Bangalore which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024 , the Statement of Profit & Loss (including Other
Comprehensive income), the CashFlow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and the other
explanatory information. (Hereinafter referred to as"Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies{Indian Accounting standards) Rules ,2018, as amended (Ind AS™) and other
accounting prineiples generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2024, and its
Loss,(including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date,

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our andit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Aect, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our andit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our andit opinion on the financial statements
Key Budit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key aundit matters to be communicated in our
report.

51
No.

1 Fairvalue assessment of trade receivables:

Key Audit Matters HAuditor's Response

Principal Audit Procedures

Trade receivables comprise a significant portion
of the licuid assets of the Company. There was no
provision made on the trade receivable in the
previous year. The most significant portion of the
trade receivables less than one year. Accordingly,
the estimation of the allowance for trade
receivables is a significant judgement area and is
therefore considered a key audit. matter,

We assessed the wvalidity of material long

outstanding receivables. which is Nil by reviewing

the customer ledger during current year. We also

considered payments received subsequent to year

end, and unusual patterns if any were reviewed to

identify. potentially impaired balances. The

assessment of the appropriateness of the

allowance for trade receivables compriseda

variety of andit procedures including Challenging

the appropriateness and reasonableness of the

assumptions applied in the directors' azsezsament

of the receivables allowance.

= Consideration and concurrence of the agreed
payment terms.

= Verification of receipts from trade receivables
subsequent to year-end; and

+ Considered the completeneas and accuracy of
the disclosures.

To address the risk of management bias, we

evaluated the resultz of our procedures against

audit procedures on other key balancesto

assess whether or not there was an indication of

biasz.

We were satisfied that the Company's trade

receivables are fairly.

valued and no provision is deemed to be required

against these receivables.
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Information Otherthan the Financial Statements and Auditor's ReportThereon

The Company's management and Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Beport, for example corporate
overview, ley highlights, Management Discussion and Analysis Report, Board's Report including Annesxures to
Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Shareholder's Information etc., but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with cur audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our
Imowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responzible for the matters stated in Section 1.34(5) of
the Companies Act 2013(the Act) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under the section 133 of the Act . This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of
the Act for safequarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent: and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management and Board of Directors either intends to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative butto do so.
Those Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users talken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 8As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We alse:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain aundit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures in the financial statements made by management and Board of Directors.

+ Coneclude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Directors use of the going conecern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our anditor's report to
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the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
Hewever, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
malkes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and cualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our worl; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
inthe financial staternents.
We: comumunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safequards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the andit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regqulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Emphasis of Matter:

We draw ypour attention to Note No 36 as regards Change in method of Valuation of closing stock of Inventory. Inpact

of this change in Method of valuation of Inventory on the loss for the year and net worth of the Company as on March

31, 2024, the amount whereolis not presently ascertainable,

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters

Reporton other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, subject to the possible effects of the matters described in the

Emphasis of Matter Section above based onour andit we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have zought and cbtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far asit
appears from our examination of those bools.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss including other comprehensive income, the Cash
Flow statement and statement of changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements coraply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of Act,

e] On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2024 and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Companies
Act, 2013

fy Withrespect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to onr separate Report in
“Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

a)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Anditor's Repert in accordance with the
requirements of section 187(186) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the ezplanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its divectors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
ofsection 187 of the Act
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h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with REule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i)  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements as of March 31,2024,

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there

were any material foresecable losses.

ii) There has been no delay in transferring the amounts required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

ii) i) The Managementhas represented that,tothe best ofits knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either fror borrowed funds or shared premium or any other sources or kinds of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

ii) TheManagementhas represented that, to the best ofits kmowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have beenreceived by the Company from
any person or entity, ineluding foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly,lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Punding Party (*'Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any quarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Utimate Beneficiaries.

iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11{e), as provided under (a) and (k)
above, contain any material misstatement.

iv) i) The companyhasnotdeclared or paid any dividend during the previous year.
ii) The interim dividend has not beendeclared and paid by the Company during the year
iii} The Board of Divectors of the Company have not proposed final dividend for the year

w) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account
using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is
applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023. Based on our examination which
included test checks, the company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording andit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our auditwe did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 20280 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, based on the comments in the Auditor's Report of the
Company and on the anditor's reports issued in accordance with the Order, we give in the annexure ‘A’ a
staternent on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable.

Foxr M/s. RAM 5 And Co,
Chartered Accountants
FEN MNo.0185545.

(CA. GOVINDA RATU JUNJURU)
PARTNER

Mem No.221304
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ANNEXURE'A 'TOTHE AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under “Report on other legal and Regulatory Reguirements” section of our report to
the members of MM Rubber Co.Ltd, of even date)

To the best of cur information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that

@

(i)

(i)

@)

()

)

Inrespect of the Company's Property Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including cuantitative
details and situation of Property Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets

(B) The Companyhasmaintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of Property Plant and Equipment and right-of-use
assets so to cover all the assets once every three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) Based on our examination of the property tax receipts for land on which building is constructed,
registered sale deed / transfer deed provided to us, we report that, the title in respect of self-
constructed buildings and title deeds of all other immovable properties, disclosed in the financial
statements included under Property Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the
balance sheetdate.

(d) The Company has not re-valued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during
the year.

() No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March
31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1588 (as
amendedin 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by management. In our
opinion, the coverage and procedure by the management is appropriate having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its operations. In respect of goods in transit, the goods have been received
subsedquent to the year-end. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical
stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b} The guarterly returns/statements filed by the company -with banks/financial institutions arve in
agreement with the boolks of account of the company.

The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships,
and granted unsecured loans to other parties, during the year.

The compary has not given any loans or guarantees/made any investments within the meaning of sections
185 & 186 of The Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be Deposits from the public
during the year in terms of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,2013,
There have beenno instances where order has been passed by Company Law board or National Company
Law Tribunal for any contravention.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of its manufactured goods and services provided by it. We have
broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of
cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the Company. We have, however, not made a
detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) Inrespect of statutory dues:

{a) In our opinion and accerding to information and explanations given to us, the Comparny has generally
been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident
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Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate
authorities.

(b)) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no undisputed amounts payable
inrespect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, SalesTax,
Service Tax,duty of Custom, duty of Excize, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues
inarrears as at March 31,2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(wiiij According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our ezamination of the
records of the Company, There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have
been surrendered or disclosed asincome during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act,1961 (43 0f1961).

(ix) (a) The company has not defaulted in any repayment of dues to any finanecial institution or bank or
debenture holders.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
of any government authority.

() The termloans have beenutilised for the purposes for which they were obtained

(d) Onan overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis
have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

() On an overall examination of the financial statements , the Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Order isnotapplicable.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised meneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year and hence reperting under clause 3(xj(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clausze 3(x)(b) of
the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the: year.

(k) No report under sub-section (13) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as

prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,
during the year and upto the date ofthis repoxt.

() We have taken info consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the
year (and upto the date of this report), while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures,

(xiil) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of theOrderis not applicable.

(ziii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with
respect to applicable transactions "with the related parties and the details of related party transactions
have beendisclosedin the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) Inour opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the
nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issned to the Company during
the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(zv) In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
Directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies
HAct, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.




(xvi) (a) [n our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of

India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clanse 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investrnent company within the Group (as defined in the Core

(xvii)

(aeviii)

(xix)

(xx)

Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause
3(xvi)(b) of the Orderisnotapplicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses during this current financial year covered by our audit,
However the Company has made cash profits during immediately preceding financial year.

There has beenno resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due withina
period of one year from the balance sheet date.We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Compary. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

Provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 [(Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)} are not
applicable to the Company. accordingly reporting under clause 3(ix) ofthe Orderis not applicable.

For M/s.RANMS And Co
Chartered Accountants
FEN No. 0165845

(CA. GOVINDA RAJU JUNJURU)

Place: Bangalore PARTNER
Date: 25-08-2024 Mem No. 221304
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ANNEXURE'E '"TOTHEINDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Refered to in paragraph 1{f) under “Report on other legal and Regulatory Requirements™ section of our report to
the members of M M Rubber Co.Ltd, of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financials Statements under clause (i) of sub section
3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)

We have andited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of M M Rubker Co Ltd (the
Company) as of 31st March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the company for the
year ended on that date. .

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Financial Controls based
on the Internal Contrel with reference to financial statements criteria established by the company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on audit of internal financial contzols
Ower Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the company’s policies, the safegquarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frands and
errors, the acouracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of the reliable
financial information, as required under the companies act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as " Act™)

Auditors’ Responsihbility

Dur responsikility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Anditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act and the Guidance Note on Andit of Internal
Financial Controls Owver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India to the
extent applicable to an audit of Internal Financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procednres to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial contrels with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the anditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to frand or error. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial contrel with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, acourately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unaunthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’'s assets that could
have amaterial effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial ControlsWith reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may ocour and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the rizk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in
all material respects, subject to the possible effects of the matters described in the Emphasis of Matter Section
above an adequate Internal Financial Controls system with reference to financial statements and suchinternal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based
on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to financial statements established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal contrel stated in the Guidance Note on audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M/s.RAMS And Co
Chartered Accountants
FEMN No. 0165545

(CA.GOVINDA RAJU JUNJURT)
Place: Bangalore PARTNER
Date: 29.05.2024 Mem No. 221304
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MM RUBBER COMPANY LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH 2024 in Thousands
As at As at
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
T T
I. ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equiprent 2 218,663 194,983
(b) Financial assets
(1) Investments 3 8 8
(ii) Other financial assets 4 1,628 1,628
(c) Deferred tax assets
({d) Other non-current assets 5 2,956 7,111
Total Non-current assets 223,255 203,131
Current assets
(a) Inventories L 62,847 69,410
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables T 28,335 17,368
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 4,538 3,404
(iii) Other Bank balances 8 200 200
(iv) Other financial assets 4 3,665 3,807
{c) Other Current Assets 10 - 104
Total Current assets 99,586 94,290
TOTAL ASSETS 322,841 298,021
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share capital 11 12,462 12 462
ib) Other equity 12 166,562 183,083
TOTAL EQUITY 179,024 195,555
II. LIAEILITIES
Non-current liabilities
{(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 13 20,408 1,458
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (nef) 14 36,637 34,257
Total Non current liabilities 57,042 35,715
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 53,662 23,918
(iij Trade payables
(i) micro and small enterprises, and 16 3.042 9,586
(if) other than micro and small enterprises 16 15,8356 17,800
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 6.829 4,834
(b) Other current liabilities 18 7,308 6,413
{c) Current Tax Liahilities (Net) 18 - 4 200
Total Current liabilities 86,115 66,151
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 322,841 298,021
Az per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For RAMS AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
FEN No. 0165945 ROY MAMNEN JACOB MAMMEN ASHOEK EURIYAN
MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
GOVINDA RAJU JUNJURU
PARTNER
MEM No. 221304
PFLACE : BANGALORE MACHIMADA MUDDAPPA EUSHALAPPA MEENAKSHI RA]
DATE:29-03-3034 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER COMPANY SECRETARY
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PROTIT AND LO55 ACCOUNT FORTHE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024 In Thousands

) Note Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars Marech 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No.
¥ (4
I Revenue from operations 20 416,386 414 553
I Other income 21 532 335
Il Total revenue (I + II) 416,978 414,888
IV Expenses:
Purchases of stock in trade 23 184,675 183,600
Changesz in inventories of finished goods,
work in progress and Stock-in-Trade 23 6,562 (18,880
201,237 — 174,810
Employee benefits expense 24 63,214 55,203
Finance costs 25 8,536 3,419
Depreciation and amortization expense 28 8,440 7,267
Other expenses 27 152,480 143,209
Total expenses 430,001 383,708
V Profit before exceptional and
extraordinary items and tax (13,029) 31,180
VI Exceptional Items - -
VI Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V-VI) (13,023 31,180
VI Extraordinary items - -
[ Profit before tax (VI-VIO) (13,023) 31,180
X Taxexpense:
Current tax - 4,200
Taxes of pricr years 1,122 880
Deferred tax 2,380 3,502 388 5,578
H  Profit for the year from continuing
operations (IX- X) (16,531) 25,602
X1l Profit/(loss) from discontinuing operations - -
K1l Tax expense of discontinuing operations - -
HIVProfit/(loss) from discontinuing operations
(after tax) (XII-XIIT) - -
Other comprehensive income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
a) Revaluation of property, plant and equipment - 53,579
b) Less: Tazes on above - 13,531
(ii) Itetns that may be reclassified to profit or loss
a) Mark to Market of Investments - -
b) Taxes on above - - - - 39,649
XV Profit/Loss for the year (XI + XIV) (16,531) 25,602
XV1 Earning per equity share before
exceptional item: 28 (2.68) 4.11
Basic & diluted (in )
XV Earning per ecuity share after
axcaptional item: 28 (2.65) 4.11
Basic & diluted (in 3)
(Paid up value per share) 2 2
Az per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For RAMS AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
FEIN No. 0165945 ROY MAMMEN JACOB MAMMEN ASHOEK EURIYAN
MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
GOVINDA RAJU JUNJURU
PARTNER
MEM No. 221304
PLACE : BANGALORE MACHIMADA MUDDAPPA EUSHALAPPA MEENAKSHI RA]
DATE:22-03-2024 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER COMPANY SECRETARY
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THEYEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024 In Thousands
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars DMarch 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
T T
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit / (Lozs) belore tazation (13,029 31,180
Adjustrments for:
Depreciation and amertisation 8,440 7,267
Other Income (582) (338)
Loss on sale of fived assets - -
Finance costs 5,538 3,419
13,394 10,350
365 41,530
Increase/ decrease in trade receivables (10,970) 9,641
Increass/ decrease in inventories 6,562 (18,890
Increasa/ decrease in other assets 4,401 B34
Increase/ decrease in other liabilities 2,889 (4,898)
Increase/ decrease in trade payables (8,408) 5,080
(5.527) 923
(5,161 33,607
Income taxes paid (5,322) (2,490)
WNet cash from operating activities (10,484) 31,112
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (32,120) (22,328)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - -
Other Income 582 338
Net cash from investing activities (31,538) (21,991)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital - -
Proceads / (repayment) from long term borrowings 18,947 1,100
Proceeds / (repayment) of short term borrowings 29,744 (7,853
Finance costs 5,536) (3,418)
WNet cash from financing activities 43,156 (10,177)
Wet increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,133 (1,0581)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 3,804 4,856
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 4,738 3,604

Cash & Cash equivalents:

The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' as set out in the Accounting Standard 3
AS-3),'Cash Flow Staterments’. Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances with banles. Cash and
cash eguivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise the following amounts in the balance sheet:

As per our Report of even date
For RAM 5 AND COMPAENY
Chartered Accountants

FEN No. 0165945

GOVINDA RAJU JUNJURU
PARTNER

MEM Ne. 221304
PLACE : BANGALORE
DATE:22-03-2024

ROY MAMMEN

MANAGING DIRECTOR

For and on behalf of the Board

JACOB MAMMEN

DIRECTOR

MACHIMADA MUDDAPPA EUSHALAPPA

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

ASHOEK EURITAN
DIRECTOR

MEENAKSHI RA]

COMPANY SECRETARY
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NOTESTOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1A. BACKGROUND:
M M RUBBER COMPANTY LIMITED ("the Company") CIN: LAE190EA1864PLCOE2082 was incorporated on
18-08-1964 under the provision of Indian Companies Act. The Registered Office is situated in Bangalore.
The Equity shares of the Company are listed on Bombay stock Exchange Limited.The Company is engaged
in the business of manufacturing of mattresses, cushions and pillows.
The Financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31-3-2024, were approved for issue in
accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 28-05-2024,

1B. Material Accounting Policy Information

Pursuant to the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 effective 01-04-2023,
the company is required to disclose ‘material accounting policy Information’ in lieu of the earlier
requirement of disclosing ‘significant accounting policies. Specific disclosure of material accounting policy
information where Ind AS permits options is made hereunder: The company has assessed the materiality of
the accounting policy information, which involves exercising judgement and considering both quantitative
and qualitative factors by taking into account not only the size and nature of the item or condition but also the
characteristics of the transactions, events or conditions that could make the information more likely to
impact the decisions of the users of the financial statements"

a. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIALSTATENMENTS:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India ("Indian GAAP") te comply with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS")
specified under Section 1332 of the Companies Act, 201 3. The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. All income and expenditure, having a material bearing on
financial statements, are recognized on accrual basis. All the assets and liabilities are classified into
current and non-current generally based on the nature of products/activities of the Company and the
normal time between acguisition of assets/liabilities and their realisation/settlement in cash or cash
equivalents. The Company has deternined its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of
classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

b. USEOFESTIMATES:

(i} The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounfing
principles reguires management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported balances of assets and liahilities, disclosures relating to the contingent liabilities
as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of income and expense during the
year. Accordingly, future results to could differ due to changes in these estimates and the
difference between the actual result and the estimate are recognized in the period in which the
results are known / materialize.

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty Key assumption concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year is as given below.

(a) Actuarial valuation : The determination of Company's liability towards defined benefit
obligation to employees iz made through independent actuarial waluation including
determination of amounts to be recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and in Other
Comprehensive [ncome. Such valuation depends upon assumptions determined after taking into
account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand
factors in the employment marlket. Information about such valuation is provided in the Notes to the
financial statements.”

Property Plant and Equipment (PPE) and other tangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition
inclusive of freight, duties, tazes and incidental expenses relating to the acquisition, installation,
erection and commissioning less depreciation. Internally manufactured assets are valued at
works cost. Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalized only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Cormapany and the cost of item can
be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the Statement of
Profit & Loss while incurred. Spare parts whose life has more than 12 month has been considered
a5 FPE and capitalized bry the companty.

Land and Building are recognised at fair value based on wvaluation by independent valuers
obtained on a pericdic basis less subsequent depreciation on buildings. Increase in carrying
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amounts on account of revaluation of land and building are recogmised net of tax in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the retained earnings under other equity. To the
extent the increase in value reverses the decrease accounted previously in other comprehensive
income, the increase is first recognised in other comprehensive income . Decrease in value that
reverses the previously accounted surplus are first recognised in other comprehensive income to
the extent of the available surplus and thereafter charged to profit / loss. Each year the difference
betreen the depreciation based onrevalued carrying amount of the asset charged to statement of
profit or loss and the depreciation based on the assets original cost net off tax, is reclassified from
the revalunation reserve to retained earnings.

(iii) Intangible assets:/Computer software:
Intangible assets are accounted at cost of acquisition less depreciation /amertization. The
intangible assets are amortized on straight line basis from the date that they are available foruse.

(iv) Depreciation & Amortization:
Depreciation on PPE bought/sold during the year is charged on written dosm value method as
per the useful life in Schedule II of Act, depending upon the month of the financial year in which
the assets are installed/sold. For the assets acquired prior to April 1, 2014 the carrying amount as
on April 1, 2014 is depreciated on over the remaining useful life as defined in Schedule I of the
Act.

¢ INVESTMENTS:
(i) Investments unless otherwise stated are considered as long term in nature and are valued at
acguisition cost less provision for diminution, if any other than those which are considered as
temporary in nature.

d INVENTORIES:

(i) Inventories does not include spare parts ,servicing equipment and stand by equipment which
meet definition of PPE as per AS-10 (revised) .

(ii) Raw materials, stores, spare parts and components are valued at cost on weighted average basis
or netrealizable value whichever is lower.

(iii) Work in progressis valued atworlks cost or net realizable value whichewver is lower,

(iv) Finished goods are valued at lower of Cost or net realisable value . (please refer note No.36 to the
Ind AS Financial Statements).

(v) DMaterial cost of work in progress and finished goods are computed onweighted average basis.

e REVENUERECOGNITION:

Revenue from contracts with customers:

Revenue from contract with customers is recognised when the Company satisfies performance
obligation by transferring promised goods and services to the customer. Performance obligations
maybe satisfied at a point of timme or over a period of time. Performance ohligations satisfied over a
period of time are recognised as per the terms of relevant contractual agreements/ arrangements.
Performance obligations are said to be satisfied at a point of time when the custormer obtains controls of
the asset.

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the fair value of the consideration received

or receivable, stated net of discounts, returns and value added tax. Transaction price is recognised
based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated sales incentives/ discounts.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for the discounts/ right of return, using the
expected value method.

A liability is recognised for expected sale returns and correspending assets are recognised for the
products expected to be returned.

The Compaty recoghises as an asset, the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer, if
the Company expects to recover those costs. The said asset is amortised on a systematic basis
consistent with the transfer of goods or services to the customer. Insurance Claims Insurance claims
are recognized on the basis of claims admitted/ expected to be admitted and to the extent that the
amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection.

f EMPLOYEEBENEFITS:
(i) Shortterm employee benefits:
Employees benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short term. Benefits such as salaries, bonus, leave travel allowance etc., are recognized in the
period inwhich the employee renders the related service.
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(ii) Postemployment benefits:

a. Defined contribution plans:
The Company has contributed to provident and pension which are defined contribution
plans. The contributions paid/ payable under the scheme are recognized during the year in
which employee renders the related service,

b. Definedbenefit plans:
Eraployees’ gratuity is defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under such
plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method
which considers each year of service as giving rize to an additional unit of benefit entitlernent
and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. Actuarial gains and losses
are recognized in the statement of other comprehensive income in the year they arise.
Obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows using a discounted
rate that is determined by reference to market yields as at the balance sheet date on
Government bonds where the currency and terns of the Government bonds are consistent
with the currency and estimated terms that matches to the defined benefit obligation.

c. Compensated Absences:
Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within
12 months from the end of the year end are treated as short term employee benefits. The
obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of acowmulating compensated
absences as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement
as at the yearend.

d. Leaveencashmentpaidto employees onretirement is accounted on acerual basis

TAXES ONINCOME:

Provision for Income-tax of the company has been made at the higher of that on the assessable income

or on basis of section 115 JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961 after taking cognizance of excess / short

provision in prior years. Deferred tax is recognized subject to consideration of prudence, on timing
differences being the differences between taxable income and accounting income that originate in
one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. The deferred tax charge or
cradit is recognized using current tax rates. Deferred tax assets/liabilities are reviewed as at each

Balance sheet date.

In terms of the Guidance note on accounting for credit available in respect of Minimum Alternative

Tax(MAT) under the Income Tax Act 1961, issued by the ICAIL the excess of MAT over normal current

tax payable has beenrecognized as an asset by way of credit to the profit & loss account as "MAT credit

entitlement”

BORROWING COS5TS:

Interest and other borrowing costs on specific borrowings relatable to qualifying assets are capitalized

up to the date such assets are ready for use / intended to use. Other interest and borrowing costs are

charged to the statement of profitand loss.

IMPAITRMENT OF ASSETS:

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value. An

imnpairment loss, if any, is charged to statement of profit and loss, in the year in which an asset is

identified as impaired.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

i) A provisionisrecogmnized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and
itis prokbable that outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits, decommissioning and
site restoration cost) are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are revievred at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

ii) Financial effect of contingent liabilities is disclosed based on information available upto the date
on which financial statements are approved. However, where a reasonable estimate of financial
effect cannot be made, suitable disclosures are made with regard to this fact and the existence
and nature of the contingent liability.

EARNINGS PER SHARE:

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to

equity share holders by the weighted average number of equity shares during the period. For the

purpose of caleulating the diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to the equity share holders and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all potential dilutive equity shares.
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1Cc

1D

FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS:
Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acguisition or issue of financial azsets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liakilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or
financial liability.
(ij Cashand CashEquivalents:
Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise cash and deposit with banks other than for term deposit
earmarked for Bank Guarantee. The company considers all highly liquid investments including
demand deposits with banlk with an original maturity of three months or less and that are readily
convertible to knovrn anwunts of cash to be cash equivalents.
(ii) Financial assetsatamortized cost:
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held
within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
(iii) Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the
carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

IMPAIRMENT:

(i) Financial Assets:
The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a
loss allowance. The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or
all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 1 2-month expected creditlosses or
at an amount equal to the life time expected creditlosses if the credit risk on the financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

(ii) NonFinancial Assets:
A non financial asset iz treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its
recoverable value, Animpairment loss,if any, is charged to statement of profit and loss, in the year
inwhich an assetis identified as impaired.

Exceptional Items:

Exceptional items are disclosed separtely in the financial staternents where it is necessary to do so to

provide further understanding of the financial performance of the Company. These are material items

of income or expense that have to be shown seprately due to the significance of their nature or amount.

Employee Benefits :

The present value of the defined benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are
determined on an actuarial basis using various assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the
net cost/(income) includes the discount rate, wage escalation and employee attrition. Any changes in
these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of obligations. The discount rate is based on the
prevailing market vields of Indian Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the
estimated term of the obligations.

"Foreign Exchange Transactions/Translation

The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. Transactions in foreign currencies are
accounted at functional currency, at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions.
Gains/losses arising out of the fluctnations in the exchange rate between functional currency and
foreign currency are recognized in the Staternent of Profit &Loss in the period in which they arise. The
fluetuations between foreign currency and functional eurrency relating to monetary items at the year
ending are accounted as gains /losses in the Statement of Profit & Loss."

"Cash Flow Statement: Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax
is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non —cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or
future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing
or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.”
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2. Property Plant and Equipment:

Tangible assets In Thousands
Plant Office |Furniture .
Particulars Land |Building| Moulds| & | equip-| and | Maoter |Infangible| ...,
Machinery| ments | fittings |Vehicles | Hsset
¥ ¥ T T ¥ T T T ¥
Balance as at 31 Mazrch 2022 44,276 52,888 2,248 39,429 5,548 1,311 5,818 - 158,375
Additions - 16,080 1,826 1,325 830 136 - 1,500 28,326
Less: Revaluation delicit!
surplus 32,128 | 21,484 - . - . = - £4,E78
Liess: Sale of assets - - - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 77,101 | 50,402 4,174 40,753 6,426 8,047 5,878 1,500 | 234,281
Additions p 1,353 BBZ| 26,882 1,208 B84 - 1,101 33,120
Leas: Revaluation deficit/
surplus - - - - - - - - -
Less: Sale of assets = = = - = = = = =
Balance as at 31 March 2024] 717,101 | 91,655 5,156 | 61,635| 17,634 8,741 5,878 2,601 | 266,401
Accumulated depreciation
Balanee as at 31 March 202 -| 10,708 787 5,538 4,093 3404 2,488 = az.0az
Depreciation charge for
the year - 2,289 303 2,541 725 585 735 88 7,267
Adjusiments + (=) - - = = = = = = =
Balance as at 31 Mazch 2023] - 12,884 1,100 12,078 4,818 3,988 4,228 88 38,288
Depreciation charge for
the year - 2,404 387 3,280 587 659 13T 347 8,440
Adjnsiments + [-} - - - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024] .| 15,398 1,497 15,339 5,405 4,648| 4,966 486 47,138
Neat block
Balance as at 31 March 202 17,101 17,408 3,014 28,674 1,608 4,058 1,648 1,411 194,983
Balance as at 31 March 2024] 11,101 | 16,251 3,650 52,291 2,229 4,093 512 2,115 | 218,663

Additional information:

1} Management has determined that there are no significant parts of assets whose useful life iz different from
that of the principal asset to which it relates to in terms of Note 4 Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, useful life of assets have been determined for the overall asset and not for its individual

cormponents.
3 Non Current Investments: InThousands
Details of Name ofthe AsatMarchil, 2024 Asat March 31, 2023
Investments Company Noof | Face |Amount] Noof | Face | Amount
shares | value T shaves | walue g
a) Investments in Equity Instruments:
i) Ingovernmentsecurities: (Other thanTrade, Uncguoted)
Fully paid up
National Savings Certificate 2 -
Total 9 9
Less:
Provision for diminution invalue of investments - -
Total 9
InThousands
Bsat Bz at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
¥ %
4. OtherFinancial As=ets:
(Unsacured and considerad good)
i) Security deposits 1,628 1628
1,628 1,628
5. OtherNon Current Assets:
(unsecured and considered good)
i) Balanceswith revenue anthorities 2,968 7,111
2,956 1,111
Less:Allowance for badand doubtful receivables = =
2,956 1,111

41



ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

NOTESTO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS InThousands
Asat Asat
Particulars Mareh 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
T il
6. Inventories:
i) RawMaterials 2,150 3,121
ii) Finished Goods 50,687 66,289
62,847 69,410
1. Trade Recetvables:
i} Traderaceivablas exceeding six months aal 554
ii) others 28,014 16,818
28,335 17,365
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables exceeding six months - -
28,335 17,365
Additional Information:
1) Brealup ofabore:
i) Secured,considersd good - =
ii) Unsecured, considered good 28,338 17,365
iii) Doubtful
Total 28,335 11,365
Less: Allowanee for doubtful receivables exceeding six months = =
28,335 17,365

2) a) Debts due by directors or other officers of the company

Amounts due by private companies in which directors of the

Company are directors
1y Trade Receivables ageing schedule:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than | 6 months| 1-2 23 [Morethan|
6 months | to ] year | vyears Yoars 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 28,014 32l 28,335
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful -
(iii) Disputed Trade Recefrables considered good -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful -
Total 28,014| 321 - - - | 28335
8. Cashand CashEguivalents:
a) Cash and cash equivalents:
i) Balanceswithbanks
-in other aceounts 4,400 3,258
ii} Cashonhand 137 146
4,538 3,404
b) Otherbank balances:
i) Balanceswithbanks
- inmargin money, security for borrowings, guarantees and
other commitments 200 ano
200 200
Total (a + h) 4. 738 3,604
9. OtherFinancial Assets:
i} Securitydeposits 2,818 2,232
if) Prepaidexpenses 128 128
iii) Others
iv) Advances GiventoVendors T22 1,450
3,665 3,807
Less: Allowance for doubtinl advances
3,665 3,801
Additional Information:
1) Brealup of abowve:
i) Secured,considersd good - -
it} Unsecured, considered good 3,668 3,807
i) Doubtiul - -
Total 3,665 3,807
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances
3,665 3,807
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BAsat Bsat
Particulars Marxch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T ¥

&) a) Debts due by directors or other officers of the company - -
k) Amounts due by private companies inwhich directors of the

Company are directors - -
10. Other Current Assets:
i) GSTInput Tax Credit - -
ii) Loansand Advances- others - 104
- 104
In Thouszands
Particulars AsatMarch 31,2024 AsatMarch 21, 2023
T T
11. Share Capital:
Authorizad: (*)
Equity shares of ¥ 2/-each 35,000 10,000 38,000 70,000
35,000 10,000 35,000 10,000
Izzned:
Erquity shares of ¥ 2/-each 62,358 12,471 62,358 12,471
62,358 12,471 62,358 12,471
Issued, fubscribed and Fully Paid up:
Equity shares of T 2/- each
Atthe beginning of the year 8,231 12,462 8,231 12,482
[ssued during the year - - - -
Atthe close of the year 6,231 12,462 6,231 12,462
Total carried to Balance Sheet 12,462 12,462
BAdditional Information:
a) Termsandrights:
The Company has only two classes of shares i.e. Preference Shares and Equity Shares. No preference shares are issned
till the date of balance sheet. The equity shares having a face value of Bs /- per share. Each shareholder of equity shares
iz entitled to one vote per sharve. The dividend proposed by the Board of the Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the ensning Annnal General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their
shareholding.
b) Aggregate numberof shares issned for consideration other than eash:
4000 Bhares of Rs.8/- each issued pursuant to a contract without
payment being recsived in cash 40 &0 40 a0
98883 shares of Rs 2/-each allofted as fully paid up by way of bonus
shares by capitalisation reserres 83 128 29 128
c) Particulars of equity share holders holding more than 5% of the total number of equity share capital:
Particulars HAsatMarch3l, 2024 | EsatMarch3l, 2023
Number ¥ Number Y
(i) NaveenBothra 385 6.18% 400 B.42%
Disclosure of Promoters Shareholding Pattern:
5. Proraoter Name As at March 31, 2024 Az at Maxch 31, 2023  |% Change during
No. No of Shares | %of total shares | No of Shares | %of tofal shares| the year 2023-24
(i) | Mr. Mammen Philip 98,383 1.5304 98,363 1.5304 NIL
(ii) | M=. Meeora Philip & Mr. Peter philip 106,668 1.7117 106,668 1.7117 NIL
(iii}] Mr. Peter Philip 3,880 0.0589 3,580 0.0589 NIL
Total
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12, Other Eguity InThousands
Attributable to owners of the Company
Other Equity
EASESaE Share Revaluation | Retained Total .
premium reserve earnings Other equity
T T T T
Total Other Equity as at March 31, 2022 75,035 50,912 (8,105) 117,842
Add/(Less): Profit for the period 26,602 26,602
Add/(less): Share Preminm during the year due to the
issuance of shares - - - -
Less: INDAS adjustment for Revaluation efland and building - 53,579 - 53,679
Less:Tax Adjustraent on Ind AS items - (13,931) - (13,931)
Leszs/Add: Depreciation onrevaluation reclassified - - - -
Total Other Equity as at March 31, 2023 75,035 90,561 17,497 183,093
Add/(Less): Profit for the period - - (16,531) (16,831
Add/(Less): Share Premium during the year due to tha
izssuance of shares - - - -
Less: INDAS adjustment for Revaluation of land and building - - - -
Lesa:Tax Adjustment on Ind AS items - - - -
Less/Add: Depreciation onrevaluation reclassified - - - -
Total Other Equity as at March 31, 2024 15,035 90,561 966 166,562
Hsat As at
Particulars March3l, 2024 Mazch 31, 2023
T
Non- Current LiabiliHes
13. Borrowings:
Secured loans:
a. Loan from Banks 20,408 1,458
Less: Current maturities on loan from banks - -
20,405 1,458
Total Borrowings 20,405 1,458
Hdditional information:

1y Details of security for secured loans:

Wehicle Loan from bank is secured against the hypothecation of motor car borrowed at interest rate of 8% p.a.

repayable in 84 equated monthly installments

Texrm loan availed from South Indian Bank is primarily secured against hypothecation/mertgage of assets purchased for
utilizing the loan and a collateral charge vide equitable mortgage of 2.85 acres of land with factory building at Ranipaet,
Tamilnadu at an interest rate of 8.90% per annum repayable in 74 ecuated monthly installments.

Note: There are no defaults in repayment of principal or interest thereon
The compary has nsed the borrowings from banles and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was
talen at the balance sheet date.

14 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net):
i) Deferred tax liakdlity:
a) On account of depreciation on fixed assets ( other than land)
b) On account of revaluation of land
Total
ii) Deferred tax asset:

16,391
20,048
36,637

14,211
20,048
34,257

a) On account of timing differences in recognition of expenditure - -

b) On account of Unaksorbed depreciation and brought forward losses
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (restricted to Deferred tax liability) = =

Total - -
Net Deferred Tax (Liability)/Asset 26,637 34,257
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BAsat As at
Particulars Mareh 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
T T
Current Liabilities
15. Borrowings:
Secured loans:
a) Loans repavakle on demand
- from banlks 48,787 11,168
Unsecured Loans:
- from Others 4,876 12,750
Total 53,662 23,018

1) Details of security for secured loans:

a) Working capital facility availed from South Indian Bank is primarily secured against hypothecation of entire assets of
the Company and collaterally secured by equitable mortgage of 2.95 acres of land with factory building at Ranipet,

Tamilnadn at an interest rate of 9.90% per annum.

2) Terms and conditions for nnsecured loans from others:
a) Represents loan availed from the Managing Director carrying an interest rate of 8% p.a. repayable on demand
Note: There are no defaults in repayment of principal or interest thereon. The company has used the borrowings
from banks and [inancial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taleen at the balance sheet date.

16. Trade Payables:

a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises

Trade payables

b} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and

small enterprises
Trade payakles

Additional Information:

3,042 9,586
3,042 9,586
15,938 17,800
18,977 27,386

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medinum Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which
recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its custormers the
Entrepreneurs Memoranduwm Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in accordance with the ‘Micro, 8mall and
Medinm Enterprises Development Aet, 2006 ("the MEME Act)). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of amounts payable to
such enterprises as at 31 March 2024 has been made in the financial statements based on the information received and
available with the Company. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet
date. The disclosures as required under section 22 of MSMED Act, 2006 under the Chapter on Delayed Payments to Micro,

Zmall and Medium Enterprises is asbelow:

sl Az at Asat
HNo. Particulars March3l, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 |Principal amount due and remaining unpaid - -
2 |Interest due on (1) above and the unpaid interest B -
3 |Interest paid on all delayed payments under the MSMED Act - B
4 |Payment made beyond the appointed day daring the year - -
& |Interest due and payable for the period of delay other than (3) above - -
6 |Interest accrued and remainineg unpaid B -
7 |The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeading
years, until such date when the interest duss above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the Micro, 8mall and Medium Enterprizes Development Act, 2006, - -
Trade Payables ageing schedule In Thousands
Dutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 1-2 2-3 More than
1 year Years Vears 3 years Total
(i) MSME 3,042 - - - 3,042
(ii) Others 15,335 - - - 15,935
(iii) Disputed dues — MEME - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
Total 18,971 - - - 18,977
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Osat As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T T
17. Other Financial Liabilities:
a) Current matorities of secured leoan from banles - -
b) Deposita from dealers 5,981 4 081
¢) Others 849 754
6,829 4,834
18. Other Current Liabilities:
a) Statntory Dues
- Tax Dedcuted at Source 874 B&0
- Goods and Service Tax 2,780 B59
- Others 203 1,080
k) Others gla 1,428
¢) Advance from Customers 135 105
dy Provison for Retirement leave 2,108 2,361
1,306 6,413
19. Current Tax Liabilities (Net):
a) Provision for tax (net of advance tax) - 4 200
- 4,200
20. Revenue from Operations:
i} Sale of Products
Domastic Sales 481,886 451,044
Less: Sales discount 45,430 36,491
416,396 414,553
21. Other Income:
iy Others Gg2 335
i) Profit on sale of fixed assets - -
582 335
22. Cost of Purchase:
i) Consumption of Stores, Components & Spare Parts 93,426 80,391
il Purchase of stock in trade 102,848 103,109
194,675 193,500
23. Changes in Inventories of Stock in Trade:
Stocks at the end of the year
iy  Finished goods &0,697 66,280
il Raw Materials 2,150 3,121
62,847 69,410
Less: Stocks at the beginning of the year
i}  Finished goods 66,280 46,882
iiy Raw Materials 8,121 3,638
69,410 50,519
6,562 (18,890)
24. Employee Benefit Exponses:
1) Salaries , wages and bonus 56,310 45,195
i) Contribution to provident and other funds 2,717 2,078
iii) Gratuity 983 1,800
iv) Staff welfare expenses 2,709 1,966
%) Leave Encashment 871 464
62,314 55,203
25. Finance Costs:
i} Interest expense 5,536 3,419
5,536 3,419
26. Depreciation and Amortization:
i) Depreciation 7,048 5,188
1,046 5,789
271. Other Expenses:
i) Repairs & Maintenance
- Buildings 4 084 3,712
- Machinery E,421 &,656
- others 448 128
i) Advertisement expenses 21,480 22,560
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Osat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2024 March3l, 2023
T T
iii) Bank Charges 70 418
i) Coolie and cartage 2,336 2,307
v) Sitting Fee 33 38
i) Conference and Seminar Expense 985 BsT
wii) Insurance 2,018 1,633
vili) Rates and Taxes 1,053 B80
ix) Travalling and Conveyance 8,116 1,842
X) Freight expenses 29,018 25,983
xi) Eent 10,723 8,299
xii) Professional Charges 13,388 11,019
xii) Sales Promotion Expenses 7,874 B,699
xiv]  Fabrication Charges 197 1,083
) Turnover Discount 15,008 16,335
xvi)  Vehicle Maintenance 1,070 1,212
xril)  Auadit fee
- as anditor 300 300
- raimburserent of expenses 182 170
xviil) Consumption of spares 338 555
¥ix)  Watch & Ward Expenses 1,334 1,194
xX) Power and Fuel 7,278 B,292
wrd)  Stitching Charees 2,718 2,494
xxii) Telephone Expenses 433 508
i)  Commission on sales 3,401 353
mzxiv) Postage Expenses 1,247 817
xxv) Printing & Stationery 981 893
xxvi) Prompt Payment Discount 7,462 6,813
wxvii) Mamufacturing Expenses 1,026 ET4
xxviii) Other Expenses 1,176 1,271
xxix) Loss on sale of fixed assets -
152,480 143,209
28. Additional Information:
a) Value of Imports calculated on CIF basis:
i} Purchases of Stock in Trade 17 -
ii) Capital goods 11,101 -
b) Expenditure in foreign carrency: (net of withholdineg tazx)
i) Other matters 1,271 463
¢) Details of non-resident shareholdings
i} Number of norresident share holders o8 8@
ii) Number of shares held by nonresident shareholdars 138 120
iii) Armount remitted during the year in foreign currency on
account of dividends - -
d) Earnings in foreign exchange:
i) Sale of products - -
29. Earnings Per Share:
(Basic and diluted)
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share [EPS] computed in accordanecs
with Ind A5 33 "Earnings per Shara":
(a) Before and after exceptional item
Profit/{Loss) for the year after tax expense (16,531 25,602
Weighted average number of equity shares 6,831 6,231
Paid up value per share 2.00 2.00
Earnings per share (basic & diluted) (2.65) 4.11

30. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments:
(to the extent not provided for)

a)

Contingent liabilities:

i} Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
iy Bank Guarantees

iiiy Unexpired Letters of credit

iv) Cenftral Excise tax under dispute

*The Company's appeal against the abeve demand has been allowed by the

appellate authorities with consequential benefits and there is no Excise dues.
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b)

Commitments:
i} Other commitmernts*
if) ‘Warranty on Sale of Products - Ameunt

not ascertainable

20,000

*The Company iz in the process of procuring new machinery to its unit at Ranipet.
31. Segment Reporting:

The Company is engaged in only manufacturing of mattresses, pillows and cushions which is considered as a single
reportable buziness sagment and accordingly, primary reporting disclosures for business segments, as envisaged in

[ndian Acconnting Standard (IND AS) 108 on Operating Sedqment is not applicable.

32. Related Party Transactions:
(a) Name ofrelated parties and description of relationship where controls exists:

25,000

5l
No. Name of the Related Party Relationship
1 [N Wholly Owned Subsidiary
2 Mil Step down subsidiary
4 [Nil Associates
4 | Roy Mammen - Managing Director Eey Managenient Personnel and their relatives ("EMEP")
Jacob Mammen - Director
Mamrmnen Philip - Director
keenakshi Raj-Company Secretary (w.e.l, 29-05-2024"
Machimada Muddappa Kushalappa- CFO
5 | Balanoor Flantations & Industries Limited Enterprizses over which key management personnel and
their relatives are able to exercise significant inflnence
(b) Transactionswith the related parties
Particulars Relationship Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
= 2
Purchase of goods and services: - - -
Nil - - -
Software Sales & Sexvice Exports - - -
il - - -
Interest Paid to Managing Directar Managing Divector 702 1,478
Remuneration paid*:
Roy Marmmen Manacring Dirsctor 48853 4,438
Keerthis Raj (w.e.f.28-01-2023) Company Secretary 551 84
Machimada MuddappaEKushalappa ChiefFinancial Officer 1,040 q66
*The remuneration paid to the Managing Director includes medical, gas, electricity, subscription, ete.
(=) Outstanding balances atthe end ofthe year:
YearEnded YearEnded
Particulars Relationship March 31, 2024 | Mlarch 31, 2023
T T
il Wholly Cwned Subsidiary - -
il Step down subsidiary - -
il Aszzociates - -
Fory Marmmmen Key Management Parsonnel 4 B26 12,500
and their relatives ("KMP™)
Jacobh Mammen - -
Sharvari Sham Kulkarni - -
Machimada Muddappa Eushalappa - -
Balanoor Plantations & Industries Limited | Enterprises over which ey 250 250
management personnel and
their relatives are able to exercise
significant influence
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33.

34.

i5.

36.

Operating Lease (Ind fis 17):

The Company has various operating leases for office facilities which is renewable on a periodic basis, and cancelabla
atits option. Rental expenses for operating leases included in the financial statements for the year are ¥1,07,23,210/-
(PreviousYear 7 92,98,768/-).

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies:

The entity's principal finaneial liabilities comprise borvenwings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
finaneial liabilities is to finance the entity's operations to support its operations. Tha entity's principal financial assets
include trade and other receivables, rental and bank deposits and cash and cash eguivalents that are derived directly
from its operations.

The entity is exposed to market risk/credit and liquidity risks. The entity's senior management oversee the
nianagement of these risks. The board veviews their activities. No significant derivative activities have bean
undertaken sofar.

Market Risk

Market risl is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a inancial instrument will uctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risks: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as
agquity price risk and coraomedity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk inelude depeosits, FVTOCI
investments and derivative financial instruments,

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the positions as at March 31, 2024 and Maxch 31,
2023:

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other post-
ratirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities of foreign operations.

The followring assumption has been made in calculating sensitivity analyses.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the azsumed changes in respective market risks. This is
based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2024 and March 31,2023 including the effect of
hedge accounting.

Interest rate visk

Changes in market conditions that give rise to market risk include changes in a benchmark interest rate, the price of
another entity’s financial instrurnent, a commodity price, a foreign exchange rate or anindex of prices or rates.

FairValue Measurement { Ind A5 113):
The Financial Instroments of the Comparny are initially recorded at fair valne and subsequently measured at amortized
cost based onthe nature and timing of the cash flows.

The below tahle summarizes particnlars of Financial Instruments nged:

Particulars BAsat HAsat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T T
Financial Assets at amortized cost:
Investments g 2]
Trade Receivables 28,3358 17,365
Other Financial Assets 5,853 5,434
Cash & cash equivalents 4 538 3,404
Other Bank Balances 200 200
Total Financial Assets 38,313 26,413
Financial Liabilities at amortized cost:
Borrowings 20,405 1,458
Other Financial Liabilities 8,829 4,834
Trade Payakles 18.977 27,386
Total Financial Liabilities 46,212 33,618

The Company has not classified any Financial Asset or Liabilities as measured at Fair value through Profit and Loss
(FV'TPL) or measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCT).

The Fair Value of the above financial assets and liabilifies are measured at amortized cost which is considered to be
approximate to their fair values.

Hitherto the Company was valuing the closing stock of inrentory pertaining to finished products comprising of
different individual products on the basis of net billing price of such product which was not in accordance with Incdian
Accounting standard No.2. During the fnancial year 2023-2024 the Company has changed the method of valuation of
closing stock i.e.Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value which is in accordance with Indian
accounting standard No.2 and becanse of this change thers has been reduction in value of closing stoclk of irmrentory. In
the abzence of sufficient appropriate information with regard to total value of inventories on the basis of net billing
price ,Itisnot possible to ascertain the finanacial impact on the financial statements . This chanege in method of Valuation
of inventories is the major reason because of which the Company has inourred a loss of Rs.165.31 lakhs for the current
financial year 2023-24.
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31. DISCLOSURES ASPERIND AS 19"EMPLOYEE BENEFITS":
a) Defined Contribution Plan:

Contribution to defined contribution plan are recoguized as expense for the year are as undex:
In Thousands

Particulars

March 31, 2024

MMarch 31, 2023

Employer's contribution to provident & pension funds

2717

2,078

b) Defined Benefit Plan:
() Gratuity

Inrespect of Gratuity plan, the most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined
benefit obligation were carried out as of March 31, 2024 . The present value of the defined benefit shligation and the
related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit cost method. The
following table =ots forth the status of the Gratuity Plan of the Company and the amount recognised in the Balance
Shest and Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company provides the gratuity benefit through annual confributions to
the funds managed by the Life Insurance Corporation Of India. The employees' gratuity fund scheme and leave
encashment are defined benefit plahs. The Present value of abligation is determined based on actnarial valnation

using the projected unit credit method.

1. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined

In Thousands

Expected rate of return on plan assets (per annum)

benefit obligation: Mareh 31, 2024 | Maveh 31, 2023
Gratuity Gratuity
Defined Benefit obligation at beginning of the year 1,729 1,785
PV of Past Service Benefit &,320 5,341
Current Service Cost (*) 822 &602
Interast Cost - -
Actnarial (gain)/ loss - -
Benefits Paid - -
Defined Benelfit obligation at end of the year 14,871 7,729
2. Reconciliation of opening and clesing balance of fair value :
Fair value of plan assats at baginning of the year E,843 1,785
Expected return on plan assets - -
Employer Contribution 1,199 1,502
Benefits paid - =
Actuarial gain/(loss) - -
Fair value of plan assets at yoear end 7,142 3,288
Reconciliation of fair value of assets and ohligations:
Fair value of plan assets 7,142 3,288
Present value of obligation 14,871 71,729
Amount recognized in Balance Sheet under liabilities: 14,871 7,728
Expense recognized during the year: (under “Note 247 As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
“Employes Benefit Expenses” in the Statement of Profit and Loss) Gratuity Gratuity
In Income Staterment:
Current Service Cost 822 602
Past service cost 6,320 5,341
Expected return on plan assets - -
In Other Comprehensive Income: - -
Apmarial (gain)/ lozs - -
Net Cost 7,143 5,943
Actuarial assumptions: March 31, 2024 | Maxch 31, 2023
Indian Assured | Indian Assured
Lives Lives
(2006 -08) (2006 -D8)
Mortality Table (Oltimate) (Tltimate)
Discount rate (per annum) 1.258% p.a 1.25% p.a.

(*) Leave provision for current vear includes provision for short term compensated absence as asseszed by the

achuary.

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniarity,

promaotion and other relesrant factors including supply and demand in the employment market.
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Sensitivity Analysis:
Sigmificant Actnarial Assnmptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate,
expected salary increase and employee tur nover. The sensitivity analysis below, has been determined based
onposgible effect of changes of an assumption ocourring at end of the reporting peried, while holding all other
assumptions constant.

(% Inlakhs)
Particulars Marxch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Decrease | Increase | Decrease | Increase

Change in discounting rate (delta efdect of +7/- 1.0%) - - - -

Change inrate of Attrition (delta effect of +/- 1.0%) - - - -

Change inrate of Mortality (delta effect of +/-0.5%) - - - -

Change inrate of salary increase (delta effect of +/- 0.6%) = = - =

Thesze plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest risl, longevity
riskand salary risk

Investment risk: Tha presant value of the defined benefit plan liability is caloulated using a discount rate
whichis determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.
Interest rizsk: A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; howewer, this will be partially
offset by an increase in the return on the plan assets.

Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability iz calculated by reference to the best
estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk: The present value of the defined plan liakility is caleulated by reference to the future salaries of
plan participants. s such, anincrease in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability,

38. Additional Regulatory Information:

Ratios
51 Ratio FY FY % of "Detailed Explanation for change
Ne | Name Formula 2023-24 2022-23 change | (Where the change is 25% or moze
as compared to the immediately
previous financial year)™
I) Current Ratio Current Assets /
Current Liabilities 1.158 1.41 -18.76% |Not applicakble
ii) Debt Equity Ratio | Total Debt/ Change in method of Valuation of
Shareholder's fund 0.41 0.13 Z1B.B3% |wantoriss during the year has
resulied in Loss*
iii) Debt Service EBIT/ Interest+ 0.04 8.68 -88.67% | Change in method of Valuation of
Coverage Ratio Principal Inventories during the year has
resulted in Loss*
iv) | Retwrnon Net BEarnings/ Change in method of Valnation of
Eemuity Ratio(in %) Sharaholder's fund -0.08 0.15 -166.17% | Inventorias during the year has
resulted in Loss *
T) Inventory Cost of Goods Sold /
Turnover ratio Bverage Inventory 6.30 6.91 -8.28% | Not Applicable
vi) | Trade Recievabled Net credit sales/fivg
Turnover Ratio Trade Recievables 18.22 18.60 =2.04% Not Applicable
vii) | Trade Payables Met cradit purchases
Turnover Ratio Bwyg Trade payables | 8.35 1.7189 1.16% Not Applicable
i) | Net Capital Wet annual zales/ Change in method of Valuation of
Tuornover Ratio Working capital 32.50 15.05 115.93% | Imventories during the year has
resulted in Loss *
ix) | Met Profit Ratio Met Profit/Sales -3.97% B.15% -164.28% | Change in method of Valuation of
(in %) Inventories during the year has
resulted in Loss*
x) Return on Capital | EBIT/ Capital Change in method of Valuation of
Employed Employed -0.03 0.14 -119.08% | Inventories during the year has
resultad in Loss*
xl Retwrn on Income generated 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Investment(ROI) | from investments/
Time weighted
avreradge investments

*Finished goods are valued at lower of Cost or net realisable value . (please refer note No.36 to the Ind AS Financial
Statements).
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39 The company doesn't have title deeds which are held other than in the company's name as at the balance sheet date.

40 The company does not have any transactions with companies strucl off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or
section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,

41 The company does not have any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period as at
the balance sheet date.

42 The proceedings haven't been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
BenamiTransactionz (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder as at the balance shest date.

43 The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment{including Right-oflUse Assets), intangible assets and
investment propearty as at the balance sheet date.

44 The company has neither advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share preminm or any other
sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies) , including foreign entities (Intermediaries) nor received
with the understanding (whether recorded inwriting or otherwisa) that the Intermediary shall
(1) directly ar indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enfiies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of

the company/Funding party (Ultimate Beneficiaries).
(11) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or om behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

45 The Company doen't have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the yearin the tax assessments under the Income Tax fict, 1961 (such as, search or survey or
any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961), unless there is immunity for disclosure under any scheme as
the balance sheet date.

43 The Companyhasn't traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtnal Currency during the finaneial year.

47. DeferredTaxAsset
The breakup of Deferred tax assetis as follows: InThousands
Particulars Az atMarchil, 2024 As atMarch 31, 2023

g T

DeferredTax Asset-(H)
Provision for Employes Benefits
Warranty Provisions
Loss allowance on Financial and Contract Assets
Onaccount of Unabsorbed depreciation and broucght
forward losses under the Income Tax Act, 196 1
(resitricted to Deferred tax liability) - -
DeferredTax Liability - (B)
Written Down Value of Fixed Assets 16,581 14,211
Others (Revaluation of Land) 20,048 20,046
Net Deferred Tax Asset - (A)-(B) (36,631) (34,251)
Movement in Deferred Tax InThousands

Particulars Charge/ (Credit) to Charge/(Credit) to

Statement of P&L OCI
For the Forthe Forthe For the
vear year year year
ended ended ended ended
Mazxch 31, March 31, March3l, March 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023
T T T T

Deferred Tax Asset-
Provision for Employee Benelits - - - -
Warranty Provisions - - - -
Loss allowance on Financial and
Contract Assets = = = -
Others
On account of Unabsorbed depreciation
and brought forward losses under the
Incomse Tax Act, 1961 - - - -
(restricted to Deferred tax liability)
Deferred Tax Liability —
Written Down Valne of Fixed Assetls 2,380 288 - -
Others (Revaluation of Land) - - - -
Total (2,380) (388)
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48 Previous year's figures have been snitably reclassified, wherever requirecd

48 The company's accounting software has audit trail functionality (edit log). This feature remained operational
throughout the year, capturing a chronological record of all relerrant transactions processed within the software.

As per our Report of even date
For RAM § AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

FRN NO 0165548

GOVINDA RAJU JUNJURU
PARTNER

MEM NO.231304

PLACE : BANGALORE
DATE:29-05-2024

For and on behalf of the Board

ROY MAMMEN JACOE MEMMEN ASHOE KURITAN
MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

MACHINVIADA MUDDAPPA KUSHALAPPA MEENAKSHI RAJ
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER COMPANY SECRETARY
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